
February 19, 2014           Agenda 
1 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council/Planning 
Commission/Public Financing Authority/Housing Authority/I.B. Redevelopment Agency 
Successor Agency regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 
inspection in the office of the City Clerk located at 825 Imperial Beach Blvd., Imperial Beach, CA 
91932 during normal business hours. 

A G E N D A  

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

HOUSING AUTHORITY 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

Council Chambers 
825 Imperial Beach Boulevard 

Imperial Beach, CA  91932 

CLOSED SESSION MEETING – 5:00 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 P.M. 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL ALSO SITS AS THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH PLANNING COMMISSION, 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, HOUSING AUTHORITY AND IMPERIAL BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

The City of Imperial Beach is endeavoring to be in total compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA).  If you require assistance or auxiliary aids in order to participate at City Council meetings, 

please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (619) 423-8301, as far in advance of the meeting as possible. 

CLOSED SESSION CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 

CLOSED SESSION (1-2) 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1)  
Case No. 37-2013-00081555-CU-EI-CTL 

2. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8: 

Property:  APN 625-271-02-00 
Agency Negotiator:  City Manager and City Attorney 
Negotiating Parties:  S.D. County  
Under Negotiation:  Instruction to Negotiators will concern price and terms of payment 

Property:  APN 626-291-05-00 
Agency Negotiator:  City Manager and City Attorney 
Negotiating Parties:  S.D. County  
Under Negotiation:  Instruction to Negotiators will concern price and terms of payment 

Property:  APN 626-291-12-00 
Agency Negotiator:  City Manager and City Attorney 
Negotiating Parties:  S.D. County  
Under Negotiation:  Instruction to Negotiators will concern price and terms of payment 

Continued on Next Page 

  



February 19, 2014           Agenda 
2 

CLOSED SESSION (Continued) 

Property:  APN 626-291-13-00 
Agency Negotiator:  City Manager and City Attorney 
Negotiating Parties:  S.D. County  
Under Negotiation:  Instruction to Negotiators will concern price and terms of payment 

Property:  APN 626-291-14-00 
Agency Negotiator:  City Manager and City Attorney 
Negotiating Parties:  S.D. County  
Under Negotiation:  Instruction to Negotiators will concern price and terms of payment 

RECONVENE AND ANNOUNCE ACTION (IF APPROPRIATE) 

ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 

REGULAR MEETING CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA CHANGES 

MAYOR / COUNCIL REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE / COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / 
REPORTS ON ASSIGNMENTS AND COMMITTEES 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY STAFF 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT - Each person wishing to address the City Council regarding items not on the 
posted agenda may do so at this time.  In accordance with State law, Council may not take action on an 
item not scheduled on the agenda.  If appropriate, the item will be referred to the City Manager or placed 
on a future agenda. 
 

PRESENTATIONS (1.1) 
1.1* PRESENTATION ON CLIMATE UNDERSTANDING AND RESILIENCE IN THE RIVER 

VALLEY BY DANIELLE BOUDREAU OF THE TIJUANA RIVER NATIONAL 
ESTUARINE RESEARCH RESERVE.  (0150-40) 

*  No staff report. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (2.1-2.3) - All matters listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be 

routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these 
items, unless a Councilmember or member of the public requests that particular item(s) be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and considered separately.  Those items removed from the Consent Calendar will be 
discussed at the end of the Agenda. 

2.1 MINUTES. 
 Recommendation:  Approve the minutes of the November 20, 2013 Regular City Council 

Meeting.   

2.2 RATIFICATION OF WARRANT REGISTER. (0300-25) 
 Recommendation:  Ratify the following registers: Accounts Payable Numbers 83936 

through 84053 with a subtotal amount of $126,950.46 and Payroll Checks/Direct 
Deposits 45736 through 45756 for a subtotal amount of $125,918.66 for a total amount 
of $252,869.12. 

2.3 ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7452 APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE 
MEMBERS OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION LOCAL 
4692.  (0540-20) 

 Recommendation:  Adopt resolution.  
 



February 19, 2014           Agenda 
3 

ORDINANCES – INTRODUCTION/FIRST READING (3) 

None.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS (4) 

None.  
 
REPORTS (5.1-5.2) 

5.1*  SPORTS PARK TASK FORCE.  (0920-40) 
 Recommendation:  Receive update.   

*  No staff report. 

 
5.2  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM PROJECT DETAIL AND ENABLING 

RESOLUTIONS 2014-7451, 2014-7453, 2014-7454, 2014-7455. 
Recommendation:  
1. Adopt Resolutions 2014-7453, 2014-7454 and 2014-7455 establishing Subpolicies 

for City Council Policy 616 to provide more detailed direction for alley improvements, 
citywide street lighting and installation of sidewalks, respectively;  

2. Approve the Two Year Implementation Schedule in accordance with City Council 
Policy 616 with the additional detail provided by staff; and  

3. Adopt Resolution 2014-7451 providing funding allocations to initiate the projects 
identified in the Two Year Implementation Schedule. 

 
I.B. REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY REPORTS (6.1-6.4) 

6.1 ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. SA-14-38 APPROVING AND RECOMMENDING 
THAT THE OVERSIGHT BOARD APPROVES THE REALLOCATION AND USE OF 
FUNDS RECEIVED FROM THE REDEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX TRUST FUND 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $756,916 TO BE EXPENDED ON ENFORCEABLE 
OBLIGATIONS APPROVED ON RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT 
SCHEDULES.  (0418-50)  
Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 

6.2 ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. SA-14-39 FINDING AND RECOMMENDING THAT 
THE OVERSIGHT BOARD FINDS THAT THE LOAN TOTALING $3,738,100 MADE 
BY THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH TO THE FORMER IMPERIAL BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY WAS FOR LEGITIMATE REDEVELOPMENT 
PURPOSES, AND OTHER RELATED ACTIONS TAKEN IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE SECTION 34191.4(b).  (0418-50)  
Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 

6.3 ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. SA-14-40 OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY APPROVING THE 
ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET FOR THE PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2014 THROUGH 
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND RELATED ACTIONS.  (0418-50)  
Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 

6.4 ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. SA-14-41 OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY APPROVING AND ADOPTING 
THE RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE FOR THE PERIOD OF 
JULY 1, 2014 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2014 (ROPS 14-15A).  (0418-50)  
Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 

ITEMS PULLED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR (IF ANY) 

ADJOURNMENT 

  



February 19, 2014           Agenda 
4 

The Imperial Beach City Council welcomes you and encourages your continued interest and 
involvement in the City’s decision-making process. 

FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE, A COPY OF THE AGENDA AND COUNCIL MEETING PACKET MAY BE 
VIEWED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK AT CITY HALL OR ON OUR WEBSITE AT 

www.imperialbeachca.gov 

 

          /s/    
Jacqueline M. Hald, MMC 
City Clerk 

http://www.imperialbeachca.gov/


Why this project? 
Climate change will effect the long-term 
ecological viability of natural ecosystems, while 
impacting the social and economic health of the 
surrounding communities. Fortunately, the 
Tijuana River Valley has been the focus of major 
restoration, conservation, and research efforts, 
making it a regional system able to accommodate 
impacts associated with our changing climate. In 
order to maintain and improve the resiliency of 
the TRV, we must strengthen our understanding 
of local vulnerabilities to climate change and 
develop adaptation strategies to address the 
impacts that threaten the future sustainability of 
important natural ecosystems and human 
communities.   

Tijuana River Valley: A Threatened but Resilient Ecosystem 
The Tijuana River Valley (TRV) contains the largest intact coastal wetland system in Southern 
California, despite intense pressure from development associated with being situated on an 
international border between two major metropolitan areas- San Diego (California, United States) 
and Tijuana (Baja California, Mexico). Unlike 
most other coastal ecosystems in the region, 
which have been fragmented or lost altogether, 
the Valley has contiguous beach, dune, salt 
marsh, riparian, and upland ecosystems. 
These habitats are largely in public ownership,  
managed by the National Oceanic & 
Atmospheric Administration, US Fish &  
Wildlife, California State Parks, County  
of San Diego, and City of San Diego. 

Tijuana River Watershed  

drains 1,700 miles to the  

Pacific Ocean through the 

Tijuana River Valley.  
(Map: TRV Recovery Strategy) 

Oneonta Slough neighboring Imperial Beach, CA 

US-Mexico Border:  

Tijuana adjacent to Border Field State Park 

Climate Understanding & Resilience in the River Valley 

A Climate Adaptation Strategy will help resource 

managers effectively protect the habitats of endangered 

and threatened species throughout the TRV.  
(Flower Photo: Michael L. Charters, calflora.net / Vireo Photo: PRBO) 

California Least Tern 

Habitat: Dune 

Light-footed Clapper Rail 

Habitat: Salt Marsh 

Salt Marsh  

Bird’s – Beak 

Least Bell’s Vireo 

Habitat: Riparian 

02/19/14 City Council Meeting 

Item  No. 1.1, Page 1 of 2



A Collaborative Approach 
TRNERR will lead a team that builds on well-
established partnerships through the TRVRT 
and is expanded to include perspectives 
among federal, state, regional, county, and 
local public agencies; universities; nonprofits; 
businesses; and landowners throughout the 
development and implementation of the 
Adaptation Strategy. This process will improve 
the ability of public agencies in the TRV to 
adapt to climate change, as well as offer tools 
for effective participatory ecosystem-based 
management in light of these changes. 

Project Objectives 
The overarching goal is to begin a regionally committed process of adapting to climate change 
within the context of other environmental and socioeconomic changes. In order to achieve this 
goal, the Tijuana River National Estuarine Research Reserve (TRNERR) will collaborate with a 
diverse stakeholder group to conduct a vulnerability assessment that informs the development of 
an Adaptation Strategy addressing the impacts of climate change, specifically sea level rise and 
riverine flooding. This project will aid the Tijuana River Valley Recovery Team (TRVRT) in 
addressing one of its priority action areas listed in the Recovery Strategy as a way to help protect 
and enhance natural resources throughout the region.  The development and implementation of 
this Climate Adaptation Strategy will help local communities adapt to climate change and 
increase ecosystem resiliency by providing jointly developed recommendations to coastal 
decision-makers on how to consider climate change in managing our natural resources and built 
infrastructure.   
 

For more information contact: 

Danielle Boudreau 
CTP Associate, CURRV Project Lead 
Tijuana River NERR 
619.575.3613 x332 
dboudreau@trnerr.org 

Research Training  

Stewardship 
Education & 

Community Outreach 

Expertise from 

TRNERR’s primary 

programs will be 

drawn on throughout 

the development and 

implementation of this 

project. 

This project is funded by a grant from the Coastal and Ocean Climate 
Applications Program of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration (NOAA) Climate Program Office. 
 
Also supported in part by a grant from the National Estuarine Research 
Reserve System (NERRS) Science Collaborative. 

In addition to being an important 

ecological resource, the Tijuana 

River Valley provides a wide 

variety of uses.  
(Navy & Border Patrol Photos: KPBS) 

US Navy 

Equestrian 

Border Patrol 

02/19/14 City Council Meeting 

Item  No. 1.1, Page 2 of 2



MINUTES 
 

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

HOUSING AUTHORITY 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

NOVEMBER 20, 2013 

Council Chambers 
825 Imperial Beach Boulevard 

Imperial Beach, CA  91932 

REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 P.M. 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING CALL TO ORDER 

MAYOR JANNEY called the City Council meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK  

Councilmembers present:  Patton, Bilbray, Spriggs 
Councilmembers absent:  None 
Mayor Present:   Janney 
Mayor Pro Tem Present:  Bragg 
Staff Present: City Manager Hall, City Attorney Lyon, City Clerk Hald, 

Assistant City Manager Wade, City Planner Nakagawa, 
Building Official Holden, Public Works Director Levien, 
Interim Administrative Services Director Wellcome 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

MAYOR JANNEY led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

AGENDA CHANGES  

None. 

MAYOR/COUNCIL REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE/COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS/ 
REPORTS ON ASSIGNMENTS AND COMMITTEES 

COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS thanked staff for setting up the lighting demonstration on 
Seacoast Drive. 
 
MAYOR PRO TEM BRAGG announced that she was reappointed as Chair to the Accessible 
Services Advisory Committee for MTS. 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY STAFF  

None. 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

BOB MILLER thanked City Council and staff for the Seacoast Drive lighting demonstration and 
he said that he looked forward to having a discussion on the matter at a future City Council 
meeting. 
 

DRAFT ITEM 2.1 



City of Imperial Beach 
City Council Meeting Minutes – Draft 
November 20, 2013 
Page 2 of 8 
 
CHUCK QUISENBERRY suggested that City Council agendas be placed on the sigalert sign to 
inform the public of upcoming City Council meetings.  
 
PRESENTATIONS (1) 

None.  

CONSENT CALENDAR (2.1-2.6)  

ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE announced for the record a clerical correction to Item No. 
2.4, Article VII – Leave of Absence, Section 4(b)(3): the removal of one of the words “one.” 
 
MOTION BY BILBRAY, SECOND BY PATTON, TO APPROVE CONSENT CALENDAR 
ITEMS NOS. 2.1 THRU 2.6.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

2.1 MINUTES.   
 Approved the Regular City Council Meeting Minutes of October 16, 2013. 

2.2 RATIFICATION OF WARRANT REGISTER.  (0300-25) 
 Ratified the following registers: Accounts Payable Numbers 83458 through 83524 for a 

subtotal amount of $347,583.23 and Payroll Checks/Direct Deposit 45585 through 
45606 for a subtotal of $130,938.96 for a total amount of $478,522.19. Additionally, 
approved previous payroll checks 45250 through 45274 for $126,968.93 and 45303-
45328 for $164,627.28. 

2.3 ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7421 APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR CODE COMPLIANCE HEARING OFFICER.  (0470-07) 
Adopted resolution. 

2.4 ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7423 AMENDING ARTICLES VI – SALARY 
ADJUSTMENT, VII – HOLIDAY WITH PAY (SECTION 3), VII VACATION LEAVE 
(SECTION 4), IX – DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES, AND X – GRIEVANCE 
PROCEDURE OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH PERSONNEL RULES.  (0500-95) 
Adopted resolution.  

2.5 RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7427 APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH AND THE CITY OF 
SAN DIEGO OFFICE OF HOMELAND SECURITY FOR A FY14 URBAN AREA 
SECURITY INITIATIVE (UASI) GRANT OF $13,240 TO FUND A GIS INTERN 
POSITION FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASSISTING IN THE PREPARATION OF 
FIREFIGHTING PREPLAN MAPS.  (0390-88 & 0510-05) 
1. Received report; 
2. Authorized the City Manager to accept the City of San Diego Office of Homeland 

Security FY14 Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) grant funds when received; 
3. Appropriated these grant funds to account no. 503-1923-419-1001; and 
4. Authorized the City Manager to sign the Memorandum of Understanding between the 

City of Imperial Beach and the City of San Diego Office of Homeland Security 
regarding the FY 14 Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) Grant Funding when 
received. 



City of Imperial Beach 
City Council Meeting Minutes – Draft 
November 20, 2013 
Page 3 of 8 
 
2.6 RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7428 TO AFFIRM CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO REPLACE 

THE RECREATION CENTER MANSARD ROOF CIP F14-001 AND APPROPRIATE 
AN ADDITIONAL $27,417 FROM THE NEW STRATEGIC CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
GF RESERVE TO CIP PROJECT F14-001.  (0330-35 & 0920-40) 
1. Received report; 
2. Affirmed the City Manager’s approval on Change Order No. 1 to the “Replace the 

Recreation Center Mansard Roof” project CIP F14-001 for a total change order cost 
of $27,417; and 

3. Appropriated an additional $27,417 from the New Strategic Capital Improvement GF 
Reserve Account for the payment of Change Order No. 1 to the “Replace the 
Recreation Center Mansard Roof” CIP F14-001 contract, account no. 420-5000-532-
XXXX. 

 
ORDINANCES – INTRODUCTION/FIRST READING/PUBLIC HEARING (3.1-3.2) 

3.1 ORDINANCE NO. 2013-1140 AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7410:  
THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH:  GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT (GPA)/ LOCAL 
COASTAL PROGRAM AMENDMENT (LCPA) / AND ZONING CODE AMENDMENT 
(ZCA) 100057/ TO IMPLEMENT COASTAL COMMISSION MODIFICATIONS TO THE 
IMPERIAL BEACH COMMERCIAL LCPA PROJECT.  MF 935.  (0610-95) 
 

CITY MANAGER HALL introduced the item. 
 
CITY PLANNER NAKAGAWA gave a PowerPoint presentation on the item and he announced a 
corrected Resolution No. 2013-7410 and corrected Ordinance No. 2013-1140 were submitted 
as Last Minute Agenda Information.  Additionally, clerical corrections were made to the 6th 
“Whereas” section of the resolution. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY declared the public hearing open. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS expressed concern about mandatory requirements under the 
Employer Support of Transit language.  He noted that there is no exemption for small employers 
who would be negatively impacted by these types of requirements.  He suggested that the 
recommendations be encouraged rather than required.  He recommended that there be an 
exemption or limiting language for smaller businesses. 
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE stated that there are many ways in which to implement 
transportation demand measures and noted that City Staff did not view the language as a 
burden on any business, whatever the size.  The language provides for ideas and he stressed 
that they are not exclusive.  He also noted that the recommendations are a State mandate as 
per Senate Bill 375 and Assembly Bill 32 to decrease greenhouse gases. 
 
In response to comments made by staff, MAYOR JANNEY clarified that SANDAG does not get 
involved in local land use issues but instead makes recommendations. 
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE further clarified that actively encouraging these types of 
recommendations does not mean an outright requirement.  He cautioned that if City Council 
does not want to accept the modification, it would greatly extend the process for approval of all 
of the amendments before City Council.  He stated that the General Plan is a guiding document 



City of Imperial Beach 
City Council Meeting Minutes – Draft 
November 20, 2013 
Page 4 of 8 
 
while the Zoning Code is the law.  He further stated that the proposed language would not 
require any business to do anything unless it is in the code and again stressed that he did not 
believe it puts a burden on any business. 
 
In response to Councilmember Spriggs’ concern about the California Coastal Commission’s 
(CCC) removal of language allowing for exceptions by a conditional use permit, ASSISTANT 
CITY MANAGER WADE stated that as staff reviewed the proposed changes made by the CCC, 
staff had to pick their battles.  He stressed that the initial changes proposed by the CCC were a 
lot worse.  He also stated that developers do not want discretionary action requiring them to get 
a CUP because it adds cost and time to any process.  He spoke about the requirements for 
upper level step backs to preserve view corridors.  He gave background on the difficult 
experience with the CCC staff with regard to the zoning for Bernardo Shores. 
 
CHUCK QUISENBERRY spoke in opposition to the item. 
 
MOTION BY BILBRAY, SECOND BY BRAGG, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION OF INTENT NO. 
2013-7410 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
AMENDING ATTACHMENT 3 OF RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7236 THAT APPROVED 
IMPERIAL BEACH COMMERCIAL GENERAL PLAN/ LOCAL COASTAL PROGRAM 
AMENDMENT (GPA/ LCPA) 100057, AND FINAL PROGRAM ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
REPORT (SCH# 2011041048) AND CERTIFYING THAT PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS TO 
THE COMMERCIAL LCP AMENDMENT STIPULATED BY THE COASTAL COMMISSION IS 
CONSISTENT WITH THE COASTAL ACT.  MF 935   
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS commented that the ordinance represents a hard fought 
community battle on height limits and density.  He also stated that the height limit is lower than 
many in the community asked for and it preserves the community.   
 
VOTES WERE NOW CAST ON ORIGINAL MOTION BY BILBRAY, SECOND BY BRAGG, TO 
ADOPT RESOLUTION OF INTENT NO. 2013-7410 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH AMENDING ATTACHMENT 3 OF RESOLUTION NO. 
2012-7236 THAT APPROVED IMPERIAL BEACH COMMERCIAL GENERAL PLAN/ LOCAL 
COASTAL PROGRAM AMENDMENT (GPA/ LCPA) 100057, AND FINAL PROGRAM 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (SCH# 2011041048) AND CERTIFYING THAT 
PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS TO THE COMMERCIAL LCP AMENDMENT STIPULATED BY 
THE COASTAL COMMISSION IS CONSISTENT WITH THE COASTAL ACT.  MF 935.  
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
CITY CLERK HALD read the title of Ordinance No. 2013-1140 “AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH AMENDING ATTACHMENT 2 OF 
ORDINANCE NO. 2012-1130 THAT AMENDED TITLE 19 (ZONING) OF THE IMPERIAL 
BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE BY AMENDING THE PROVISIONS FOR THE C-1, C-2, AND C-3 
COMMERCIAL ZONES AND AMENDING THE ZONING MAP FOR PROPERTIES 
DESIGNATED C-1 (GENERAL COMMERCIAL) IN THE PALM AVENUE STUDY AREA, C-2 
(SEACOAST COMMERCIAL) IN THE OLD PALM AVENUE AND SEACOAST DRIVE STUDY 
AREAS, AND C-3 (NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL) IN THE 13TH STREET CORRIDOR 
STUDY AREAS AND AREAS ZONED R-1500 (HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL) THAT WERE 
SUBJECT TO THE MU-1 (MIXED USED-1) OVERLAY DESIGNATION IN THE PALM AVENUE 
STUDY AREA AND THE MU-2 (MIXED USE-2) OVERLAY DESIGNATION IN THE 



City of Imperial Beach 
City Council Meeting Minutes – Draft 
November 20, 2013 
Page 5 of 8 
 
SEACOAST DRIVE STUDY AREA TO SATISFY THE MODIFICATIONS STIPULATED BY THE 
COASTAL COMMISSION. MF 935.”  
 
MOTION BY SPRIGGS, SECOND BY BRAGG, TO CONTINUE THE PUBLIC HEARING TO 
THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF DECEMBER 4, 2013 AND TO WAIVE FURTHER 
READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2013-1140 IN FULL, AND SET THE MATTER FOR A 
SECOND READING AND ADOPTION ON DECEMBER 4, 2013.  MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
3.2 ORDINANCE NO. 2013-1143, INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING:  ADOPTING 

CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS TITLE 24 PARTS 1 THROUGH 12,  
2013 EDITION WITH CERTAIN AMENDMENTS, ADDITIONS, AND DELETIONS.  
(0710-95) 

 
CITY MANAGER HALL introduced the item. 
 
BUILDING OFFICIAL HOLDEN stated that the Building Code is 12 volumes of technical 
information that changes every three years.  The changes presented are fairly minor and 
occurring statewide. 
 
CITY CLERK HALD read the title of Ordinance No. 2013-1143 “AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH, CALIFORNIA AMENDING CHAPTERS 8.50, 
15.02, 15.04, 15.06, 15.08,15.16, 15.20, 15.28 15.32 AND 15.38, ADDING CHAPTERS 15.14, 
15.18, AND 15.34 AND REPEALING CHAPTERS 15.24 AND 15.40 OF THE IMPERIAL 
BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE.” 

 
MOTION BY SPRIGGS, SECOND BY PATTON, TO INTRODUCE AND HOLD THE FIRST 
READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2013-1143 BY TITLE ONLY, WAIVE FURTHER 
READING IN FULL, AND SET THE MATTER FOR SECOND READING BY TITLE ONLY 
AND ADOPTION AT THE NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
OF DECEMBER 4, 2013 AND AUTHORIZE THE PUBLICATION IN A NEWSPAPER OF 
GENERAL CIRCULATION.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
ORDINANCES – SECOND READING/ADOPTION  

None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  

None. 
 
REPORTS (6.1-6.4) 

6.1  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7422 ADOPTING AND APPROVING THE CITY SALARY & 
COMPENSATION PLAN FOR FY 2013-2015.  (0520-95) 
 

CITY MANAGER HALL introduced the item. 
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE reported on the item. 
 
MOTION BY PATTON, SECOND BY BILBRAY, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7422 
ADOPTING AND APPROVING THE SALARY & COMPENSATION PLAN FOR FISCAL 



City of Imperial Beach 
City Council Meeting Minutes – Draft 
November 20, 2013 
Page 6 of 8 
 
YEARS (FY) 2013-2015.   
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS recognized staff and the unions for concluding the negotiations 
successfully. 
 
VOTES WERE NOW CAST ON ORIGINAL MOTION BY PATTON, SECOND BY BILBRAY, 
TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7422 ADOPTING AND APPROVING THE SALARY & 
COMPENSATION PLAN FOR FISCAL YEARS (FY) 2013-2015.  MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
6.2.  10TH STREET (BETWEEN S.R. 75 TO DONAX AVENUE) DESIGN OPTIONS. 

(0720-10) 
  
CITY MANGER HALL introduced the item. 

 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR LEVIEN reported on the item. 
 
LARRY THORNBURGH, Senior Project Manager for Nasland Engineering, along with PAT 
O’CONNOR, of Parterre Landscape Architects, presented conceptual plans for the 700 block of 
10th Street. 
 
CHUCK QUISENBERRY spoke in opposition to the item.  He suggested that the City not spend 
any more money until the 9th and Palm project is completed. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER PATTON expressed concern about lighting and safety in the area, 
suggested selection of acceptable lighting without doing test lighting, and supported generous 
sized parking spaces.  He also expressed concern about the weight of the equipment going in 
and out of the CalAm property.   
 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR LEVIEN responded that CalAm does not have equipment larger 
than the City’s Public Work’s Dept. and he noted that he has not seen an impact on Cherry Ave. 
where CalAm is currently located. 
 
MAYOR PRO TEM BRAGG stated that she did not support the location of CalAm on the corner 
of Palm Ave. and 10th Street.  She spoke in support for Concept A. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS expressed concern about investing too much in a commercial 
area that is located away from residential foot traffic.  He spoke in favor of the design and 
concept but questioned if the area is appropriate for the required amount of time, energy and 
investment. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR LEVIEN stated that the design compliments the Palm Ave. 
Master Plan.  He stressed that if the City lets individual businesses do the improvements, it will 
lead to a mixture of designs.  He suggested that the City Council set the standard for the area or 
else the same level of businesses will continue to exist on that street. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY supported setting the standard for development in order to avoid a mixture of 
designs. 
 



City of Imperial Beach 
City Council Meeting Minutes – Draft 
November 20, 2013 
Page 7 of 8 
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS expressed concern about the cost for construction drawings. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER PATTON stated that the concept is a model for consistency of the streets 
and supported Concept A. 
 
CITY MANAGER HALL spoke about the importance of putting forth information so the 
developers know what to do and they have some expectation on predictability and time.  He 
also commented that having a development pattern avoids having to come back to City Council 
for review on every street.   
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE stated that there is no obligation of the City to pay for 
improvements.  The City can place requirements on the developers to incrementally build the 
improvements. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS stated that he is fine for the City to proceed with the planning 
stage.  He expressed concern about getting incrementally committed to an area that is already 
built up.  He preferred a focus on target areas such as 9th and Palm and Seacoast Drive where 
there is a more likely chance of getting investors.  
 
MOTION BY JANNEY, SECOND BY BILBRAY, TO PROCEED WITH THE CONSTRUCTION 
DRAWINGS FOR THE 700 BLOCK OF 10TH STREET PER THE CONCEPT PLAN “A” AND 
TO DIRECT STAFF TO RETURN TO CITY COUNCIL FOR AN APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS 
NECESSARY TO DESIGN THE APPROVED CONCEPT PLAN FOR THE 700 BLOCK OF 
10TH STREET.  MOTION CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
AYES:    COUNCILMEMBERS:  BILBRAY, PATTON, BRAGG, JANNEY 
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBERS:  NONE 
ABSTENTIONS: COUNCILMEMBERS:  SPRIGGS 
 
6.3.  PERSONNEL STATUS UPDATE, EMPLOYEE FURLOUGH SCHEDULE AND 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7425 APPROVING A ONE-TIME 
RETENTION INCENTIVE STIPEND FOR ALL NON-DEPARTMENT HEAD LEVEL 
EMPLOYEES.  (0520-60) 
 

CITY MANAGER HALL reported on the item. 
 
MOTION BY JANNEY, SECOND BY SPRIGGS, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7425 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ASSIGN ONE-TIME RETENTION INCENTIVE 
STIPENDS TO NON-DEPARTMENT HEAD EMPLOYEES.  MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
6.4.  RECOMMENDATION FOR ADOPTION OF A GENERAL FUND FUND BALANCE 

POLICY.  (0300-95) 
 
CITY MANAGER HALL gave a PowerPoint presentation on the item. 
 
Consensus of City Council to support a General Fund Reserve of 40% to 50% of annual 
expenditures.  
CHUCK QUISENBERRY questioned why the funds for the Redevelopment Agency were not 
included.   



City of Imperial Beach 
City Council Meeting Minutes – Draft 
November 20, 2013 
Page 8 of 8 
 
 
CITY MANAGER HALL stated that Redevelopment funds are a function of the State.  The State 
is trying to keep any money that is not due to the City.  He noted that there are two sources 
where the City might get money from the dissolution of redevelopment agencies: recouping 
money it loaned to the RDA and property tax revenue.   
 
I.B. REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY REPORTS (7) 

None.  

ITEMS PULLED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR (IF ANY) 

None. 

ADJOURNMENT 

MAYOR JANNEY adjourned the meeting at 8:53 p.m. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      James C. Janney, Mayor   
 
 
___________________________________ 
Jacqueline M. Hald, MMC 
City Clerk 









































































































Attachment 4



































Exhibit B















































































Name of Successor Agency: Imperial Beach
Name of County: San Diego

Current Period Requested Funding for Outstanding Debt or Obligation 

A 756,916$          

B -                       

C 756,916            

D -                       

E 1,555,714$       

F 1,430,714         

G 125,000            

H Current Period Enforceable Obligations (A+E): 2,312,630$       

Successor Agency Self-Reported Prior Period Adjustment to Current Period RPTTF Requested Funding 

I Enforceable Obligations funded with RPTTF (E): 1,555,714         

J (151,267)           

K 1,404,447$       

County Auditor Controller Reported Prior Period Adjustment to Current Period RPTTF Requested Funding 

L Enforceable Obligations funded with RPTTF (E): 1,555,714         

M -                       

N 1,555,714         

Name Title

/s/

Signature Date

Administrative Costs (ROPS Detail)

Less Prior Period Adjustment (Report of Prior Period Adjustments Column S)

Adjusted Current Period RPTTF Requested Funding (I-J)

Less Prior Period Adjustment (Report of Prior Period Adjustments Column AA)

Adjusted Current Period RPTTF Requested Funding (L-M)

Certification of Oversight Board Chairman:
Pursuant to Section 34177(m) of the Health and Safety code, I 
hereby certify based on my information and belief that the above is a 
true and accurate Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for the 
above named agency.

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 14-15A) - Summary
Filed for the July 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 Period

Enforceable Obligations Funded with Non-Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) Funding 
Sources (B+C+D):

Non-Administrative Costs (ROPS Detail)

Enforceable Obligations Funded with RPTTF Funding (F+G):

Bond Proceeds Funding (ROPS Detail)

Reserve Balance Funding (ROPS Detail)

Other Funding (ROPS Detail)

 Six-Month Total 

Attachment 2



A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P

 Bond Proceeds  Reserve Balance Other Funds Non-Admin  Admin  
73,674,131$          -$                        756,916$            -$                            1,430,714$         125,000$            2,312,630$              

           1 2003 TAB Series A (Refunded by Bonds Issued On or 12/1/2003 12/1/2036 Wells Fargo Bank Bond Debt Service pursuant to Section Palm Ave                              -  Y  $                            - 
           2 2010 Tax Allocation Bonds Series Bonds Issued On or 

Before 12/31/10
11/1/2010 11/1/2041 Wells Fargo Bank Bond Debt Service pursuant to Section 

34171 (d) (1) (A) and 34171(d)(1)( E ).  
See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

41,955,238             N 361,685                             158,868  $                520,553 

           3 2003 Tax Allocation Bonds Series A 
Reserve

Bonds Issued On or 
Before 12/31/10

12/1/2003 12/1/2036 Wells Fargo Bank Bond Debt Service pursuant to Section 
34171 (d) (1) (A) and 34171(d)(1)( E ).

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                             -  Y  $                            - 

           4  2010 Tax Allocation Bonds Series 
Reserve 

Bonds Issued On or 
Before 12/31/10

11/1/2010 11/1/2041 Wells Fargo Bank Bond Debt Service pursuant to Section 
34171 (d) (1) (A) and 34171(d)(1)( E ).

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

 N  $                            - 

5 Housing Loan/Advance to make 
Bond Payment

5/1/2012 6/30/2015 Housing Authority Advance/loaned Housing Deficiency 
Low Mod Tax Increment Funds 
loaned/advanced to pay May 2012 
Bond Payments.  Section 34171 (d) (1) 
(G).  See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

 N       

6 Housing Loan/Advance to pay 
Enforceable Obligations

6/1/2012 7/1/2015 Housing Authority Advance/loaned Housing Deficiency 
Low Mod Tax Increment Funds 
loaned/advanced to pay ROPS 1 & 2 
enforceable obligations. Section 34171 
(d) (1) (G).  See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

 N       

7 Housing (HA) Loan/Advance to pay 
Enforceable Obligations

6/1/2012 7/2/2015 Housing Authority Advance/loaned Housing Deficiency 
Low Mod Tax Increment Funds (HA) 
loaned/advanced to pay ROPS 1 & 2 
enforceable obligations.  Section 
34171 (d) (1) (G).  See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

 N       

8 Housing Agreement 1/1/2011 7/3/2015 Imperial Beach For provisions of housing costs under 
CRL  pursuant to Health and Safety 
Code 34171 (d) (3), 34176.  See Notes 
Page

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

 N       

           9 Clean & Green Program Improvement/Infrastr
ucture

4/17/2013 6/30/2014 Various Contractors/Project 
Management

Tax Exempt Housing Bond Indenture 
Project pursuant to and consistent with 
2003 Tax Allocation Bonds Series A 
issued December 2003.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                             -  Y  $                            - 

         10 Habitat Project Improvement/Infrastr
ucture

6/28/2013 6/30/2014 Habitat P.M. /Project 
Management

Tax Exempt Housing Bond Indenture 
Project pursuant to and consistent with 
2003 Tax Allocation Bonds Series A 
issued December 2003.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                             -  Y  $                            - 

         11 Admin Budget Admin Costs 7/1/2014 12/31/2014 Successor Agency & City of 
Imperial Beach

Per Sections 34177(j) and 34177(k) of 
the Dissolution Act, the Administrative 
Budget and estimated payment with 
RPTTF was approved by Successor 
Agency on February 19, 2014 by 
Resolution and presented to the 
Oversight Board for approval by 
Resolution on February 26, 2014.  See 
Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                  125,000  N                125,000  $                125,000 

12 City Service Agreement 7/1/2007 12/31/2014 City of Imperial Beach Per AB 26/AB 1484 - Section 34171 (d) 
(1) (F), 34178 (a), 34180 (h).  See 
Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

 N       

         13 Legal Legal 11/13/2013 2/1/2016 McDougal Love/Kane 
Ballmer

Legal Services provided to Successor 
Agency per enforceable obligations.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                  200,000  N  $                            - 

         14 Pier South Hotel Project 
Requirements

OPA/DDA/Constructi
on

12/1/2010 3/15/2066 Successor Agency & City of 
Imperial Beach

Fulfillment of Project requirements per 
Developer/Former RDA DDA and 
Ground Lease, per H&S Code Section 
34171(d)(1)(E).  See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                  180,000  N                  30,000  $                  30,000 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 14-15A - ROPS Detail
July 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014

(Report Amounts in Whole Dollars)

Item # Payee Description/Project Scope Project Area
 Total Outstanding 
Debt or Obligation  Retired 

 Funding Source 

Six-Month TotalProject Name / Debt Obligation Obligation Type
Contract/Agreement 

Execution Date

 RPTTF 
 Non-Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund 

(Non-RPTTF) 

Contract/Agreement 
Termination Date



A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P

 Bond Proceeds  Reserve Balance Other Funds Non-Admin  Admin  

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 14-15A - ROPS Detail
July 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014

(Report Amounts in Whole Dollars)

Item # Payee Description/Project Scope Project Area
 Total Outstanding 
Debt or Obligation  Retired 

 Funding Source 

Six-Month TotalProject Name / Debt Obligation Obligation Type
Contract/Agreement 

Execution Date

 RPTTF 
 Non-Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund 

(Non-RPTTF) 

Contract/Agreement 
Termination Date

         18 Litigation - Defense Costs/Fees Litigation 4/25/2012 2/1/2016 Successor Agency, City of 
Imperial Beach, McDougal 
Love, and Kane Ballmer

Lawsuit filed by Affordable Housing 
Coalition of San Diego County re 
obligations of Former RDA.  See Notes 
Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                  100,000  N                  60,000  $                  60,000 

         19 Oversight Board Costs Required by 
State Law

Admin Costs 7/1/2014 12/31/2014 Successor Agency & City of 
Imperial Beach

Costs incurred by Successor Agency 
as requested and required by the 
Oversight Board per State law. See 
Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                    20,000  N  $                            - 

         22 9th & Palm Avenue Real Estate 
Management

Property 
Maintenance

7/1/2014 12/31/2014 Successor Agency & City of 
Imperial Beach

Costs relating to Successor Agency 
owned asset per LRPMP and PSA.  
See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                  100,000  N                  50,000  $                  50,000 

         23 Tax Allocation Bonds Required 
Annual Continuing Disclosure

Professional 
Services

11/17/2010 1/1/2041 NBS Costs relating to required annual 
continuing disclosure obligations of the 
Successor Agency on the 2013 Series 
A TABs and 2010 TABs.  See Notes 
Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                      7,900  N                    2,125  $                    2,125 

         24 Tax Allocation Bonds Property Tax 
Data Collection/Monitoring

Professional 
Services

1/14/2004 1/1/2041 HdL Data used by NBS for preparation of 
the required annual continuing 
disclosure obligations of the Successor 
Agency on the 2013 Series A TABs 
and 2010 TABs.  See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                      4,050  N                    2,025  $                    2,025 

         25 Successor Agency Annual Financial 
Audit and Financial Statements 
Required by State Law

Professional 
Services

9/4/2013 12/31/2014 Lance, Soll Lundgard, CPA 
Firm

Costs relating to the Successor 
Agency's preparation of Annual Audit 
and Financial Statements required by 
State law.  See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                      6,007  N                    6,007  $                    6,007 

         26 2003 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds 
Refunding Financial Advisor/Non-
Contingent Portion

Professional 
Services

12/1/2013 2/1/2014 First Southwest 2003 Series A TABs Refunding 
Financial Advisor - non-contingent 
portion of costs.  See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                             -  Y  $                            - 

         27 2003 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds 
Fiscal Consultant/Non-Contingent 
Portion

Professional 
Services

7/17/2013 2/1/2014 Fraser & Associates 2003 Series A TABs Refunding Fiscal 
Consultant - non-contingent portion of 
costs.  See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                             -  Y  $                            - 

         28 2003 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds 
Refunding Successor Agency Non-
Contingent Fees & Costs

Professional 
Services

12/1/2013 2/1/2014 Successor Agency, City of 
Imperial Beach, McDougal, 
Love and Kane, Ballmer

2003 Series A TABs Refunding and 
2013 Series A Refunding TABs 
Issuance - Successor Agency non-
contingent fees and costs (including 
legal fees and reimbursement costs).

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                             -  Y  $                            - 

29 City Loan Repayment Indebtedness - 
Loan from City to Former RDA within 
2 years of Redevelopment Plan 
Adoption and 
Expansion/Amendment - H&S Code 
Section 34191.4(b)

City/County Loans 
On or Before 6/27/11

6/7/1995 12/21/2023 City of Imperial Beach City loan to Former RDA executed 
within 2 years of Redevelopment 
Agency formation and repaid per H&S 
Code Section 34191.4(b).  See Notes 
Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

3,738,100 N    1,115,215  1,115,215 

         30 Prior Period Litigation RPTTF 
Distribution

Litigation 1/1/2014 6/30/2014 Successor Agency & City of 
Imperial Beach

Litigation action relating to RPTTF 
distribution on June 1, 2012 and 
payment of enforceable obligations.  
Litigation was filed to protect 
enforceable obligations and prevent 
default as a result of County notice not 
to distribute June 1, 2012 RPTTF 
without DOF approval letter.  See 
Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                             -  Y  $                            - 

         33 Bond Services 2003 TABs Professional 
Services

12/11/2003 6/1/2033 Wells Fargo Trustee Services for 2013 Series A 
Refunding TABs.  See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

                             -  Y  $                            - 

         34 Bond Services 2010 TABs and 2013 
Series A Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds

Professional 
Services

11/18/2010 11/1/2041 Wells Fargo Trustee Services for 2010 TABs and 
the 2013 Series A Tax Allocation 
Refunding Bonds.  See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA3

                    36,000  N                    5,500  $                    5,500 



A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P

 Bond Proceeds  Reserve Balance Other Funds Non-Admin  Admin  

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 14-15A - ROPS Detail
July 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014

(Report Amounts in Whole Dollars)

Item # Payee Description/Project Scope Project Area
 Total Outstanding 
Debt or Obligation  Retired 

 Funding Source 

Six-Month TotalProject Name / Debt Obligation Obligation Type
Contract/Agreement 

Execution Date

 RPTTF 
 Non-Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund 

(Non-RPTTF) 

Contract/Agreement 
Termination Date

         35 ROPS II Unfunded Obligations Cash-
Flow Deficit

Professional 
Services

7/1/2012 12/31/2014 Successor Agency & City of 
Imperial Beach

Actual costs incurred exceeded DOF-
approved amounts on ROPS II for:  
Wells Fargo Bank Continuing Bond 
Disclosure ($3,200 estimated versus 
$4,000 actual incurred) and RDA 
Statute of Compliance ($2,611 
estimated versus $2,785 actual 
incurred).  See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

974  N                       974  $                       974 

         36 2013 Series A Tax Allocation 
Refunding Bonds issued by the SA 
in compliance with H&S Code 
Section 34177.5 as approved by the 
DOF

Bonds Issued On or 
Before 12/31/10

12/4/2013 12/31/2014 Wells Fargo Bank Bond Debt Service pursuant to H&S 
Code Section 34171 (d) (1) (A) and 
34171(d)(1)( E ). See Notes Page.

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

27,200,862             N                395,231  $                395,231 

         37 Reserve for the 2013 Series A Tax 
Allocation Refunding Bonds

Bonds Issued On or 
Before 12/31/10

12/4/2013 12/31/2014 Wells Fargo Bank Bond Debt Service pursuant to Section 
34171 (d) (1) (A) and 34171(d)(1)( E ).

Palm Ave 
Commercial Corridor 
PA1, PA2

 N  $                            - 

 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 
 $                            - 



A B C D E F G H I

Other  RPTTF 

 Bonds Issued 
on or before 

12/31/10 

 Bonds Issued 
on or after 
01/01/11 

 Prior ROPS period 
balances and DDR 
balances retained 

 Prior ROPS 
RPTTF 

distributed as 
reserve for next 
bond payment  

 Rent,
Grants,

Interest, Etc. 
 Non-Admin and 

Admin  

ROPS 13-14A Actuals (07/01/13 - 12/31/13)
1 Beginning Available Cash Balance (Actual 07/01/13)

Note that for the RPTTF, 1 + 2 should tie to columns J and O in the 
Report of Prior Period Adjustments (PPAs) 267,146             

2 Revenue/Income (Actual 12/31/13) 
Note that the RPTTF amounts should tie to the ROPS 13-14A distribution 
from the County Auditor-Controller during June 2013 3,265,673            Column 2-H includes all $250,000 of the Admin Co                           

3 Expenditures for ROPS 13-14A Enforceable Obligations (Actual 
12/31/13)
Note that for the RPTTF, 3 + 4 should tie to columns L and Q in the 
Report of PPAs 267,146             1,331,616            Column H-3 includes only half of the $250,000 ACA                                       

4 Retention of Available Cash Balance (Actual 12/31/13) 
Note that the RPTTF amount should only include the retention of reserves 
for debt service approved in ROPS 13-14A 1,809,057            Column 4-H includes DOF-approved bond debt res                                                                 

5 ROPS 13-14A RPTTF Prior Period Adjustment 
Note that the RPTTF amount should tie to column S in the Report of 
PPAs. 

No entry required
151,267               Column 5-H includes $125,000 of approved $250,0                                               

6  Ending Actual Available Cash Balance 
C to G = (1 + 2 - 3 - 4), H = (1 + 2 - 3 - 4 - 5) -$                     -$                      -$                            -$                       -$                             (26,267)$              $26,267 of RPTTF is proposed by the SA and O                         

ROPS 13-14B Estimate (01/01/14 - 06/30/14)
7 Beginning Available Cash Balance (Actual 01/01/14) 

(C, D, E, G = 4 + 6, F = H4 + F4 + F6, and H = 5 + 6) -$                     -$                      -$                            1,809,057$        -$                             125,000$                              ed with the SA's June 1, 2013 RPTTF distribution.
8 Revenue/Income (Estimate 06/30/14)

Note that the RPTTF amounts should tie to the ROPS 13-14B distribution 
from the County Auditor-Controller during January 2014 243,645               

9 Expenditures for 13-14B Enforceable Obligations (Estimate 06/30/14)
1,142,647          283,144               Column 9-H includes RPTTF received on 1-2-14 p                                                          

10 Retention of Available Cash Balance (Estimate 06/30/14) 
Note that the RPTTF amounts may include the retention of reserves for 
debt service approved in ROPS 13-14B 26,267                    640,143             90,506                 Column 10-H includes unexpended and retained R                                           

11 Ending Estimated Available Cash Balance (7 + 8 - 9 -10) -$                     -$                      (26,267)$                 26,267$             -$                             (5,005)$                

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 14-15A - Report of Cash Balances
(Report Amounts in Whole Dollars)

Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34177(l), Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) may be listed as a source of payment on the ROPS, but only to the extent no other funding source is available or when payment from property 
tax revenues is required by an enforceable obligation.

Fund Sources

Comments

 Bond Proceeds  Reserve Balance 

Cash Balance Information by ROPS Period



A B C D E F G H I J  K L  M N O  P Q  R  S  T U V  W X Y  Z  AA  AB 

 Net SA Non-Admin 
and Admin PPA 

(Amount Used to 
Offset ROPS 14-15A 
Requested RPTTF) 

 Net CAC Non-
Admin and Admin 

PPA
 (Amount Used to 

Offset ROPS 14-15A 
Requested RPTTF) 

 Authorized   Actual   Authorized   Actual   Authorized   Actual   Authorized  

Available
RPTTF 

(ROPS 13-14A 
distributed + all other 

available as of 
07/1/13)

 Net Lesser of 
Authorized / 

Available  Actual  

 Difference 
(If K is less than L, 
the difference is 

zero)  Authorized  

Available
RPTTF 

(ROPS 13-14A 
distributed + all other 

available as of 
07/1/13)

 Net Lesser of 
Authorized / 

Available  Actual  

 Difference
(If total actual 
exceeds total 

authorized, the 
total difference is 

zero) 
 Net Difference

(M+R) 

Net Lesser of 
Authorized / 

Available  Actual   Difference  

Net Lesser of 
Authorized / 

Available  Actual   Difference   Net Difference 

-$                    -$                         267,146$          267,146$         -$                        -$                         3,026,016$        49,657$                     49,657$                  2,989,406$          26,267$                  250,000$           250,000$                125,000$             125,000$                151,267$                                    nistrative costs in ROPS 13-14B period. -$                            -$                        -$                              
               1  2003 TAB Series A 

    
                      -              133,573             133,573                            -               385,214  $                           -                385,214  $                           -  $                              - 

               2  2010 Tax Allocation 
  

                      -              133,573             133,573                            -               390,430  $                           -                390,430  $                           -  $                              - 
               3  2003 Tax Allocation 

Bonds Series A 
Reserve 

                      -                          -                            -            1,028,787  $                           -             1,028,787  $                           -  $                              - 

               4  2010 Tax Allocation 
Bonds Series 
Reserve 

                      -                          -                            -               754,003  $                           -                754,003  $                           -  $                              - 

               5  Housing 
Loan/Advance to 
make Bond 
Payment 

                      -                          -                            -                          -  $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 

               6  Housing 
Loan/Advance to 
pay Enforceable 
Obligations 

                      -                          -                            -                          -  $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 

               7  Housing (HA) 
Loan/Advance to 
pay Enforceable 
Obligations 

                      -                          -                            -                          -  $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 

               8  Housing Agreement                       -                          -                            -                          -  $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
               9  Clean & Green 

Program 
                      -                          -                            -                          -  $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 

             10  Habitat Project                       -                          -                            -                          -  $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
             11  Admin Budget                       -                          -                            -                          -  $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
             12  City Service 

Agreement 
                      -                          -                            -                          -  $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 

             13  Legal                       -                          -                            -                          -  $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
             14  Pier South Hotel 

Project 
Requirements 

                      -                          -                            -                   5,000  $                           -                    5,000  $                           -  $                              - 

             15  Capital Trailer 
Rental 

                      -                          -                            -                          -  $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 

             16  Due Diligence 
Review ("DDR") 
Preparation Cost 

                      -                          -                            -                          -  $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 

             17  2003 Tax Allocation 
Bonds Series A 

                      -                          -                            -                          -  $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 

             18  Litigation                       -                          -                            -                 60,000                        49,657  $                 49,657                  23,390  $                 26,267  $                    26,267  This amount of unexpended RPTTF 
($26,267) is being retained for bond 
debt service on the 2010 TABs during 
ROPS 14-15A period. 

             19  Oversight Board 
Costs Required by 
State Law 

                      -                          -                            -                          -  $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 

             20  ROPS I Cash-flow 
Deficit 

                      -                          -                            -               203,530  $                           -                203,530  $                           -  $                              - 

             21  ROPS 3 
Administrative Cost 
Allowance Approved 
Yet Unfunded 

                      -                          -                            -               149,052  $                           -                149,052  $                           -  $                              - 

             22  9th & Palm Avenue 
Real Estate 
Management 

                      -                          -                            -                 50,000  $                           -                  50,000  $                           -  $                              - 

 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 
 $                           -  $                           -  $                              - 

ROPS 13-14A CAC PPA: To be completed by the CAC upon submittal of the ROPS 14-15A by the SA to Finance and 
the CAC.  Note that CACs will need to enter their own formulas at the line item level pursuant to the manner in which they 
calculate the PPA.  Also note that the admin amounts do not need to be listed at the line item level and may be entered 
as a lump sum. 

CAC Comments SA Comments 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 14-15A - Report of Prior Period Adjustments
Reported for the ROPS 13-14A (July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013) Period Pursuant to Health and Safety Code (HSC) section 34186 (a)

(Report Amounts in Whole Dollars)

ROPS 13-14A Successor Agency (SA) Self-reported Prior Period Adjustments (PPA): Pursuant to HSC Section 34186 (a), SAs are required to report the differences between their actual available funding and their actual expenditures for the ROPS 13-14A (July through December 2013) period.  The amount of 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) approved for the ROPS 14-15A (July through December 2014) period will be offset by the SA’s self-reported ROPS 13-14A prior period adjustment. HSC Section 34186 (a) also specifies that the prior period adjustments self-reported by SAs are subject to audit by 
the county auditor-controller (CAC) and the State Controller.  

Item #
Project Name / 
Debt Obligation 

Non-RPTTF Expenditures

Non-Admin Non-Admin CAC Admin CACAdminBond Proceeds Reserve Balance Other Funds

RPTTF ExpendituresRPTTF Expenditures



Item # Notes/Comments

1               
The 2003 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds were refunded with the issuance of 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds on December 4, 2013.  Therefore, this item 
(Item 1) has been retired and a new item (Item 36) has been added for the 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds.

2               

Due to a reduction in bond debt service payments for the 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds during the ROPS 13-14B period as a result of the refunding of 
the 2003 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds in December 2013, there is a balance of $640,143 of unexpended RPTTF originally held as a reserve for bond debt service 
payments on the 2003 Series A TABS during the ROPS 13-14B period. The Successor Agency proposes to the Oversight Board for adoption on February 26, 2014 per 
Oversight Board Resolution No. OB-14-30 the holding of $640,143 as a reserve during the ROPS 13-14B period and the reallocation and use of said funds toward the 
bond debt service payments on the 2013 Series A TABS during the ROPS 14-15A period as payment in full of bond debt service in the amount of $395,231 and on the 
2010 TABs during the ROPS 14-15A period as partial payment of bond debt service in the amount of $244,912.  In addition, obligations approved on the ROPS 13-14B 
pertaining to non-contingent costs for the bond refunding process (Item #26 for $19,000, Item #27 for $25,500, Item #28 for a remaining balance of $46,006 - totaling 
$90,506) were in fact paid by the bond refunding proceeds, or in the case of Item #28 has a remaining unexpended balance.  Additionally, there is a $26,267 
unexpended RPTTF balance from Item #18 on ROPS 13-14A. Therefore, per Oversight Board Resolution No. OB-14-30 proposed to be adopted on February 26, 2014, 
the balance of $90,506 of RPTTF from ROPS 13-14B and the balance of $26,267 of RPTTF from ROPS 13-14A was approved to be held as a reserve during the 
ROPS 13-14B period and reallocated toward the bond debt service payment on the 2010 TABs during the ROPS 14-15A period as partial payment of bond debt service 
in the amount of $116,773.  As such, the total bond debt service payment for the 2010 TABs during the ROPS 14-15A period is $522,278 and is proposed to be funded 
with the reserve RPTTF amount of $361,685 ($244,912 plus $90,506 plus $26,267) from the OB's reallocation of RPTTF funds from the ROPS 13-14A period and the 
ROPS 13-14B period, plus a total new RPTTF requested amount of $158,868 for the ROPS 14-15A period.

3               

The 2003 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds were refunded with the issuance of 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds on December 4, 2013.  Therefore, this item 
(Item 3), establishing a bond debt service reserve funded with RPTTF and previously approved by the DOF, has been retired and a new item (Item 37) has been added 
to establish a bond debt reserve funded with RPTTF for the 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds.

11             
The amount of the Administrative Cost Allowance is not intended to limit the use and amount of other funds available to the Successor Agency, if any is available, to be 
used to pay for additional administrative costs included in the Administrative Budget for the period July 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014.

14             

These costs are associated with a DDA entered into by the Former RDA on December 16, 2010 and the Ground Lease, as required by the DDA, on March 15, 2011.  
Pursuant to H&S Code Section 34171(d)(1)(E), this item constitutes an enforceable obligation.  This item is specifically excluded from the definition of and payment by 
the administrative cost allowance and does not constitute an administrative cost as a project-related cost pursuant to H&S Code Section 34171(b).  Payment of this 
obligation is required by the underlying Former RDA DDA and Ground Lease and therefore constitutes an enforceable obligation of the Successor Agency pursuant to 
H&S Code Section 34171(d)(1)(E) and shall be payable from RPTTF monies.

18             

Litigation costs due to the filing of a lawsuit by the Affordable Housing Coalition of San Diego County alleging that unmet obligations of the Former RDA pursuant to the 
California Community Redevelopment Law constitute an enforceable obligation of the Successor Agency payable from RPTTF.  Costs relating to potential and pending 
litigation in connection with assets or obligations constitute an enforceable obligation of the Successor Agency and shall be payable from RPTTF monies, not as an 
administrative cost, pursuant to H&S Code Section 34171(b).

19             

Costs incurred by the Successor Agency in connection with performing statutorily required services for the Oversight Board are not administrative costs and are not 
paid using the Administrative Cost Allowance because they are costs incurred by the Successor Agency due to the Successor Agency being required to perform 
services for the Oversight Board pursuant to State law set forth at H&S Code Section 34179(c).  As such, payment of this obligation is required by State law at H&S 
Code Section 34179(c) and therefore constitutes an enforceable obligation of the Successor Agency pursuant to H&S Code Section 34171(d)(1)(C) and shall be 
payable from RPTTF monies, not as an administrative cost.

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 14-15A - Notes 
July 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014



Item # Notes/Comments

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 14-15A - Notes 
July 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014

22             

These costs are associated with managing this real estate asset owned by the Successor Agency per the LRPMP and Purchase and Sale Agreement approved by the 
DOF.  Further, these costs are specifically excluded from the definition of and payment by the administrative cost allowance and does not constitute an administrative 
cost as a cost for maintaining assets pursuant to H&S Code Section 34171(b) and constitutes and enforceable obligation pursuant to H&S Code Section 
34171(d)(1)(E).  Payment of these obligations constitute an enforceable obligation of the Successor Agency and shall be payable from RPTTF monies.

23             

Costs relating to annual continuing disclosure obligations of the Successor Agency on the 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds and the 2010 TABs are 
required by the Indentures governing the issuance of the TABs and constitute enforceable obligations of the Successor Agency pursuant to H&S Code Sections 
34171(d)(1)(A) and 34171(d)(1)( E ), and shall be payable from RPTTF monies, not as an administrative cost.

24             

Costs relating to data collection and monitoring for the annual continuing disclosure obligations of the Successor Agency on the 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds and the 2010 TABs are required by the Indentures governing the issuance of the TABs and constitute enforceable obligations of the Successor Agency pursuant 
to H&S Code Sections 34171(d)(1)(A) and 34171(d)(1)( E ), and shall be payable from RPTTF monies, not as an administrative cost.

25             

Pursuant to State law at H&S Code Section 34177(n), the Successor Agency is required to cause a post audit of the financial transactions and records of the successor 
agency to be made at least annually by a certified public accountant.  As such, payment of this obligation is required by State law at H&S Code Section 34177(n) and 
therefore constitutes an enforceable obligation of the Successor Agency pursuant to H&S Code Section 34171(d)(1)(C) and shall be payable from RPTTF monies, not 
as an administrative cost.

29             

On May 3, 1995, the Former RDA was created.  On June 7, 1995, and within 45 days of creation of the Former RDA, the City of Imperial Beach and the Former RDA 
entered into a Cooperation Agreement for the City's loan/advance of funds to the Former RDA for startup monies to jump start redevelopment, which loan/advances 
would be repaid by the Former RDA from tax increment funds.  City loan/advances were provided to the Former RDA upon the adoption of the Redevelopment Plan for 
the original Project Area and upon the adoption of the Redevelopment Plan for Amendment No. 1 Area.  Repayment of the City loan is due and payable now as the City 
has called repayment of the principal of the loan.  However, per the DOF on the meet and confer determination on the ROPS 13-14B dated December 17, 2013, the 
DOF states this City loan is subject to the provisions and repayment formula outlined in H&S Code Section 34191.4(b).  Therefore, per Oversight Board Resolution No. 
OB-14-31, the Oversight Board approved the City Loan as an enforceable obligation and made a finding that the City loan was made for legitimate redevelopment 
purposes and approved the repayment schedule for the principal balance of the City loan in the amount of $3,738,100.  Additionally, the requested RPTTF amount for 
this ROPS 14-15A period of $1,115,215 is equal to 50% of the increase in residual distributions from FY 2012-2013 ($0) to FY 2013-2014 ($2,230,430).

33             

The 2003 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds were refunded with the issuance of 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds on December 4, 2013.  Therefore, this item 
(Item 33) has been retired and the Trustee Services required for the 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds have been combined with the Trustee Services for 
the 2010 Tax Allocation Bonds under Item 34.

34             

Costs relating to Trustee services provided to the Successor Agency for both the 2010 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds and the 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds are required by the Indenture governing the issuance of theses TABs and constitute enforceable obligations of the Successor Agency pursuant to H&S Code 
Sections 34171(d)(1)(A) and 34171(d)(1)( E ), and shall be payable from RPTTF monies, not as an administrative cost.

35             

This requested payment from RPTTF in the amount of $974 relates to actual costs exceeding allocated RPTTF on the ROPS 3 for unfunded ROPS 2 DOF-approved 
obligations. This payment relates to the following obligations: Wells Fargo Bank Continuing Bond Disclosure ($3,200 estimated versus $4,000 actual incurred) and RDA 
Statute of Compliance ($2,611 estimated versus $2,785 actual incurred).  



Item # Notes/Comments

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 14-15A - Notes 
July 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014

36             

The 2003 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds were refunded with the issuance of 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds on December 4, 2013, as approved by the 
DOF.  Therefore, Item 1 has been retired as noted above and this new item (Item 36) has been added for debt service related to the 2013 Series A Tax Allocation 
Refunding Bonds.  Additionally, a total bond debt service payment of $1,028,787 from prior RPTTF bond debt service reserves was approved for expenditure during the 
ROPS 13-14B period for the 2003 Series A tax Allocation Bonds.  Since the 2003 Series A TABs were refunded by the issuance of the 2013 Series A Tax Allocation 
Refunding Bonds for savings per H&S Code Section 34177.5, the actual bond debt service payment for the 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds during the 
ROPS 13-14B was reduced to $388,644 leaving a balance of RPTTF of $640,143.  Per Oversight Board Resolution No. OB-14-30, to be consIdered for adoption on 
February 26, 2014, this balance of $640,143 of RPTTF was held as a reserve during the ROPS 13-14B period and reallocated toward the bond debt service payments 
on the 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds during the ROPS 14-15A period as payment in full of bond debt service in the amount of $395,231 and on the 
2010 TABs (Item #2) during the ROPS 14-15A period as partial payment of bond debt service in the amount of $244,912.

37             

Again, the 2003 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds were refunded with the issuance of 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds on December 4, 2013.  Therefore, 
the item (Item 3), establishing a bond debt service reserve funded with RPTTF and previously approved by the DOF, has been retired and this new item (Item 37) has 
been added to establish a bond debt reserve funded with RPTTF for the 2013 Series A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds.


	Agenda
	Item 1.1
	Item 2.1
	Item 2.2
	Item 2.3
	Item 5.2 
	Item 6.1
	Item 6.2
	Item 6.3
	Item 6.4



